
AB 
 
PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 20 OCTOBER 2020 
1.30 PM 
 

VENUE: Peterborough City Council Youtube Page 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

1. Apologies for Absence 
 

 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council.  

 

 

3. Members' Declaration of intention to make representations as Ward 
Councillor 
 

 

4. Minutes of the Meeting Held on: 
 

3 - 20 

  30 July 2020;and  

 1 September 2020 
 

 

5. Development Control and Enforcement Matters 
 

 

 5.1 20/00708/FUL - Acorn Lodge Kennels And Cattery Thorney 
Road Eye Peterborough. 
 

21 - 32 

 5.2 20/01005/TRE - 7 Enfield Gardens Netherton Peterborough PE3 
9RP. 
 

33 - 38 

 
 
 
Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take photographs and use 
social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the public. Audio-recordings of 
meetings may be published on the Council’s website. A protocol on this facility is available at:  
 
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recor
ding&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

1

https://www.youtube.com/user/PboroughCityCouncil
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385


Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: G Casey (Vice Chairman), C Harper (Chairman), P Hiller, R Brown, Warren, Hussain, 
Iqbal, Jones, B Rush, Hogg and Bond 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: N Sandford, Simons, M Jamil and E Murphy 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Karen Dunleavy on telephone 01733 
452233 or by email – karen.dunleavy@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
CASE OFFICERS: 
 
Planning and Development Team:  Nicholas Harding, Mike Roberts, Janet Maclennan, David 

Jolley, Louise Simmonds,, Amanda McSherry, Matt Thomson, 
Asif Ali, Michael Freeman, Jack Gandy, and Carry Murphy 

 
Minerals and Waste:   Alan Jones 
 
Compliance:   Clive Dunnett, Julie Robshaw, Glen More, Andrew Dudley 
 
 
NOTES: 
 
1. Any queries on completeness or accuracy of reports should be raised with the Case Officer, 

Head of Planning and/or Development Management Manager as soon as possible. 
 
2. The purpose of location plans is to assist Members in identifying the location of the site.  

Location plans may not be up-to-date, and may not always show the proposed development.   
 
3. These reports take into account the Council's equal opportunities policy but have no 

implications for that policy, except where expressly stated. 
 
4. The background papers for planning applications are the application file plus any documents 

specifically referred to in the report itself. 
 
5. These reports may be updated orally at the meeting if additional relevant information is 
 received after their preparation. 

2



AB 
 

MINUTES OF THE PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE 

MEETING 
HELD AT 1:30PM, ON 

TUESDAY, 30 JULY 2020 
VIA ZOOM VIRTUAL CONFERENCE 

  
Committee Members Present: Harper (Chairman), Casey (Vice Chairman), Rush, Brown, 
Hiller, Warren, Hussain, Amjad Iqbal, Jones, Hogg and Bond. 
 
Officers Present:  Nick Harding, Head of Planning Peterborough and Fenland 
   Sylvia Bland, Development Management Group Lead 
   Dan Kalley, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
   Stephen Turnbull, Planning Solicitor    

Nick Greaves, Principal Engineer 
 

Others Present:  
    
  
10. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

  
There were no apologies for absence 
 

11.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
Councillor Jones declared that he was a Ward Councillor in relation to item 5.2 and 
knew the objector in relation to item 5.1, however he had not been involved in either 
application. 
  

12. MEMBERS’ DECLARATION OF INTENTION TO MAKE REPRESENTATIONS AS 

WARD COUNCILLOR 

 

There were no declarations of interest to make representation as Ward Councillor. 

 

13. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 9 JUNE 2020 

 

The minutes of the meeting held on 9 June 2020 were agreed as a true and accurate 

record. 

 

14. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL AND ENFORCEMENT MATTERS 

 
14.1 20/00767/PRIOR – VERGE SOUTH OF WAR MEMORIAL AND ADJACENT TO 

SLIP ROAD, EASTFIELD, PETERBOROUGH 

 
The Committee received a report, which sought determination as to whether the prior 
approval of the Local Planning Authority is required for the installation of an 18m 
Phase 8 monopole c/w wrapround cabinet at base and associated ancillary works. 
The original scheme submitted was for a 20m monopole, but after discussions 
between the LPA and the Agent this has been reduced to 18m. 
 

3



The Head of Planning introduced the item and highlighted key information from the 

report and the update report, which included additional representations. Members 

were informed that the Council had to determine the application by the 14 August 

2020, if this was not to take place the mast would get automatic consent to go ahead. 

The committee were only able to take into account siting and appearance when 

determining the application. 

 

Phil Branston and Councillor Chris Ash, addressed the Committee and responded to 

questions from Members. In summary the key points highlighted included: 

 

 The elevation plan showed the pole and equipment in front of the trees and 

bushes. This gave the impression it was back against the trees, however this 

was not the case. The mast sat in the middle of the grass verge between the 

road and the footpath and cycleway, creating a prominent position. 

 The drawing provided showed the position of the mast from the Sainsbury’s 

on the parkway. The mast was 10m above the height of the street lights which 

was far too great in size. 

 Having seen other similar masts in Peterborough most of these were 

positioned away from residential areas and were at the back of any footpaths 

and in most instances within the trees. 

 There were concerns around the electro-magnetic output of the antenna, 

however it was assumed that Environmental Health officers had already 

cleared this as safe from that point. 

 There were concerns around highway safety, the pole and equipment would 

obstruct the view of motorists exiting the slip road and turning left.  

 Eastfield Road was a main access route for fire engines from Dogsthorpe Fire 

Station onto the Parkway. As there was queuing traffic on the opposite side of 

the road - the fire engines will be on the wrong side of the road - directly facing 

traffic exiting the slip road. Members were requested to take this into account 

if there were any doubts over the application being granted. 

 The size of the mast was far too great and was twice the size of adjacent 

street lights. The pole and equipment were going to be a detriment to the 

street scene in appearance and was poorly sited. 

 Councillor Ash stated his concerns over the appearance and siting of the 

mast, it was a large 18m mast and was out of keeping with what was a largely 

residential area. 

 Although not a ward councillor for the application the boundary was the middle 

of the road, and therefore houses on one side of the road affected by the mast 

were in Dogsthorpe Ward.  

 The reason for objecting was not in respect of finding another location but the 

detriment to the area of the current planned location. 

 

 

The Planning and Environmental Protection Committee debated the report and in 

summary, key points raised and responses to questions included: 

 

 The Highways Officer confirmed that the siting of the pole was 4.4m from the 

kerb line. Looking at the junction in question it was not within the visibility 

4



displays required, i.e 2.4m back by 43m for that road in question. Therefore 

this was not causing an issue as far as highways were concerned. 

 Members were informed that they needed to determine the application that 

was in front of them. The provider had looked at alternative locations, however 

these were more problematic in terms of adjacent development than what was 

being proposed. 

 The local school and community centre were consulted, however neither 

organisation responded. 

 Members were informed that if no decision was made by the 14 August then 

the application would automatically be granted. 

 The highways and transportation representation could not be taken into 

account due to the legislation not allowing this. However this did not stop the 

highways team from approaching the mast provider to establish how frequent 

the maintenance visits to the site were going to be. It was possible for 

discussion to take place over the installing of a parking spot on the verge in 

order for technicians to be able to maintain the mast, but not get in the way of 

traffic. 

 Officers confirmed that a green colouration for the mast was looking to be 

used, rather than the usual white. 

 The application in front of members was part of the rollout of 5G to cover the 

Peterborough area. From looking at the plans this was the optimum site for 

being able to get the signal out and a compromise over the location of the 

mast. Overall the proposal was good and away from houses as far as 

possible. 

 The mast at 18m in a green colour would look fairly innocuous and would not 

be overbearing on the location. There was evidence to support the local 

school and been consulted and had not returned any concerns. 

 There was concern that the site proposed was merely easier and more 

suitable for the operator rather than the benefit of residents. It was argued as 

to whether this mast would be more appropriate down the road in more open 

spaces. 

 It was not really within the remit of the committee to propose alternative 

locations as the committee had to decide what was in front of them. 

 The committee were informed that if the proposal was agreed a delegation to 

officers could be included to discuss a gradient colour scheme with the 

developer. 

 The operator did look at three alternative sites, however these were 

discounted as they had a worse impact on the street scene and relationship 

with adjacent residential properties. 

 It was not possible to defer the item as there would be no time to bring this 

back to committee before the 14 August deadline, by which date the 

application would be granted automatic consent. 

 

 

 
 
 
RESOLVED:  

 

5



The Planning Environment Protection Committee considered the report and 

representations. A motion was proposed and seconded to GRANT the application 

with delegation to officers to determine the colouration of the mast. The Committee 

RESOLVED (10 for, 1 against) to GRANT the planning permission.  

 

REASON FOR THE DECISION: 

 

Upon assessment of the proposal, it is considered that the proposed development 

will not result in an unacceptably harmful impact in terms of its siting and 

appearance. As such, in accordance with Class A of Part 16 of Schedule 2 of the 

Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 

(as amended), the prior approval of the Local Planning Authority is required and it is 

granted 

 

14.2 20/00321/FUL – GARAGES TO THE REAR OF 266 EASTERN AVENUE, 

DOGSTHORPE, PETERBOROUGH PE1 4PZ 

 
 

The Committee received a report, which sought permission is sought to convert the 

existing garages into 3no. single storey residential properties, to be used for 

affordable rented tenure. The three units would be split as follows: - 2no. 2 bed / 3 

person dwellings; and - 1no. 1 bed / 1 person dwelling. Amended plans have been 

received and consulted upon, given that the original proposal submitted to the Local 

Planning Authority was considered to be adversely harmful to the amenity of 

surrounding neighbours, specifically Nos. 95, 97 and 99 Poplar Avenue through rear-

facing windows that would appeared prominent across the rear gardens of these 

neighbouring dwellings. 

 

The Development Manager Group Lead introduced the item and highlighted key 

information from the report and the update report.  

 

Councillor Ash, Ward Councillor, addressed the Committee and responded to 

questions from Members. In summary the key points highlighted included: 

 

 The application went against local policy LP 17, which acknowledged the 

impact and health and wellbeing of good developments. The officer in their 

report stated that there was a lack of amenity space. 

 There were also concerns over the amenity of the residents on Poplar 

Avenue, windows would need to face the gardens on Poplar Avenue. 

Assurances would need to be given that there would be no overlooking. 

 Although it was essential that accommodation designed for over 55’s was 

necessary it did not need to be second rate as believed for this application. 

Not having an amenity space for residents was a retrograde step backwards. 

 The design put forward was not the best and was not good enough for the city 

of Peterborough. If members were minded not to refuse the application it was 

requested that the item be deferred for further evaluation. 

 In terms of the Dogsthorpe garage sites these had been well cared for and 

there were no real issues with fly tipping.  

6



 Any design should consider the wellbeing of the people moving into the 

accommodation and consider the amenity space of residents around the 

proposed development. A previous plan for the site had been rejected. 

 If the development was the right one for the location it would be better than 

what was currently there, however the proposals in front of committee were 

not up to the required standard. 

 

 

The Planning and Environmental Protection Committee debated the report and in 

summary, key points raised and responses to questions included: 

 

  A condition could be agreed whereby the residents of the proposed 

development had to be over 55. In terms of the application in front of 

committee the applicants were intending these to be for over 55’s however 

this was not solely a development for over 55’s and could be used by people 

of different ages, especially those who may have mobility issues. 

 The applicant’s proposal was to replace the walls with fencing, however 

officers could attach conditions, should the committee agree, that should the 

fencing be unsuitable to be replaced by a brick wall instead. 

 Some members had concerns over the use of a wooden fence. It would be 

preferable to attach a condition to the application so that the boundary 

remained the brick wall that was there now. 

 The design of the proposal was good and was an improvement on what was 

currently on site at the moment. In terms of parking it would be useful for 

officers to investigate whether the spaces could be moved to make parking on 

site easier. 

 There were concerns around the lack of amenity space for residents and 

amenity loss for gardens adjacent to the development. However with the 

positioning of the bedroom windows some of these concerns had been 

alleviated.  

 The proposal for the site was rational and would be far better than what was 

currently on site. 

 Listening to the concerns of residents and members of the committee with 

regards to boundaries and car parking, showed there were problems that still 

needed to be resolved. 

 Members felt the location and positioning of the parking provision was not 

suitable, however some members felt that the issue would resolve itself once 

people had moved into the development. 

 There were elements to the proposal that were not ideal, particularly around 

the amenities. However there were large green spaces areas across the road 

which could be used. There was great need within the city for single level 

accommodation for the over 55’s and disabled people. 

 

RESOLVED:  
 

The Planning Environment Protection Committee considered the report and 

representations. A motion was proposed and seconded to GRANT the application 

with an additional condition as outlined below with regards to the boundary wall. The 

7



Committee RESOLVED (10 for, 1 against) to GRANT the planning permission 

subject to relevant conditions delegated to officers.  

 

In the event that the external rear and/or side walls of the garages, to support the 

units hereby permitted, are not suitable for retention or that the walls are impractical 

to retain, no development (including demolition of any garage units) shall commence 

on the site until a scheme for the replacement of the rear and/or side garage walls 

have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 

scheme shall include details of a brick wall to replace the existing garage walls. The 

development shall only be undertaken in accordance with the approved scheme. 

 

 

REASON FOR THE DECISION: 

 

Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable 

having been assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing 

against relevant policies of the development plan and specifically:  

- The principle of development is acceptable. - The character and appearance of the 

site and the surrounding area would not be adversely harmed by the proposed 

development, in accordance with Policy LP16 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 

- The proposed housing scheme would provide acceptable provision and it is not 

considered that the proposal would unacceptably impact upon the safety of 

surrounding highways, in accordance with Policy LP13 of the Peterborough Local 

Plan (2019).  

- The impacts of the proposed development to surrounding neighbours would not 

cause unacceptable harm to their amenity, in accordance with Policy LP17 (Part A) 

of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019).  

- The amenity of future occupiers would be acceptably served by the proposed 

development, in accordance with Policy LP17 (Part B) of the Peterborough Local 

Plan (2019).  

- The proposal would not adversely impact upon any protected trees, in accordance 

with Policy LP29 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019).  

- The proposal would not adversely impact upon the drainage of the site, in 

accordance with Policy LP32 of the Peterborough Local plan (2019).  

- The proposed scheme would not disturb any significant buried heritage assets, in 

accordance with Policy LP19 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 

In the interests of the visual amenity of this area and security of residents in 

accordance with Policy LP16 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 

 

14.3 20/00206/FUL – 24 PARK ROAD, PETERBOROUGH, PE1 2TD 

 
The Committee received a report for which permission is sought for: the construction 
of timber-framed outbuilding to the rear for use as Shisha lounge (this also extends 
across the rear of Nos 20-26); construction of a single storey side extension located 
to the rear; an increase in height of the site’s rear boundary wall to 2.5 metres; and 
relocation of an existing external staircase, also to the rear. This application is a re-
submission of a previous application, 19/00786/FUL, which was withdrawn. 

 
 

The Head of Planning introduced the item and highlighted key information from the 

report and the update report. The officers were recommending refusal on two grounds 

8



namely the installation of the wall and concerns with noise disturbance on adjacent 

properties. Officers had in the past approved similar shisha lounges, however these 

were in locations with a different context to that being proposed. Members were 

informed that there was a statement from the agent and also a Ward Councillor 

supporting the application. 

 

Mr Mohammed Iqbal, the agent, addressed the Committee and responded to 

questions from Members. In summary the key points highlighted included: 

 

 The application site was located within the city centre and was surrounded by 

other mixed use commercial properties. 

 Access to the shisha lounge was to be from the front entrance of 24 Park 

Road. On the previous submitted application environmental officers had 

concerns regarding smoke and noise. However looking at previous 

applications that had been agreed these had residential properties directly 

approve the shisha lounge and these did not raise any concerns. 

 This application site was detached and there were no residential properties in 

close proximity. 

 The flat above 24 Park Road was occupied by the chef of the restaurant and 

therefore the only residential flats were 22 and 26 Park Road. 

 The conservation officer had concerns with the original application. Following 

this discussions had taken place with the conservation officer to address their 

concerns. The conservation officer suggested reducing the height of the 

shisha room to 2.5m and also raise the wall to higher than what was currently 

in place. 

 There had been email correspondence from the conservation officer to state 

that they were happy with the proposed changes. 

 In terms of noise disturbance, the entrance and exit to the shisha lounge was 

from the front of the building and there would be no music playing on the 

premises. 

 There had been a few other shisha lounges that had been opened within the 

conservation area in question. All points that the conservation officer made 

had been addressed. 

 An email from the conservation officer had been received stating that they 

were happy with what was being proposed and would support an application if 

it was made. If there were concerns over the height of the wall then the 

applicant would be happy not to raise this. 

 The wall did not need to be raised due to the increased height of the shisha 

kitchen. 

 A separate access way was created so that people were able to access the 

shisha lunge without having to go through the restaurant kitchen. 

 

The Planning and Environmental Protection Committee debated the report and in 

summary, key points raised and responses to questions included: 

 

 The layout drawing indicated 16 outdoor seats. In terms of fire safety that was 

not a concern or area that planning officers looked at in determination of the 

application. This would not be any different from a pub gardens smoking area 

for example. 

9



 The proposal sought to erect an extension to the outside wall. It was this 

extension to the wall that the conservation officer deemed inappropriate. The 

greenery outside the wall was in the main going to be lost as a result of the 

development, therefore the extension to the wall would be more visible than 

what was there currently. 

 The wall was one of the original features of the Bull hotel and therefore it was 

relevant to consider it as an integral part of the listed building in terms of the 

setting and appearance. 

 Although these were revised plans the Conservation Officer still had 

objections. Under the original scheme the covered area of the shisha lounge 

went up to and was attached to the boundary wall where the Bull Hotel. With 

this revised scheme the canopy does not extend as far as the boundary wall, 

therefore it left a few metres between the edge of the canopy and the 

boundary wall. However the application in front of members was still to 

increase the height of the wall. The shisha kitchen area was a completely 

enclosed area and the height of this was 2.5m which would require further 

extension to the boundary wall with the Bull Hotel car park. The Conservation 

Officer was still unhappy with the proposal as the wall was still to be 

increased. 

 The formal use of the property was for a restaurant. The shisha area was the 

equivalent to a covered smoking area outside of a restaurant facility. This 

needed consent as it was a commercial premises. 

 Members were informed that the canopy structure as indicated on the plans 

was going to be 2.5m which was the same height as the boundary wall and 

therefore the same followed for the kitchen area. 

 An email from the conservation officer stated that they were happy for the wall 

to go up to 2m in height but not 2.5m, this was why the conservation officer 

was objecting. 

 There had been no responses to the consultation from the two neighbouring 

properties. 

 There was an argument that the conservation area was not overly affected as 

the proposal backed onto the Bull Hotel carpark and was in between buildings 

that were not listed. However looking at the plans these were different to what 

the conservation officer had required to be acceptable. 

 There were concerns over what the conservation had stated both to the agent 

and planning officers and it was worth considering whether a deferral was 

appropriate. 

 The application was mediocre, especially as this was within a conservation 

area. Applications should be trying to be in keeping within the conservation 

area as best as possible. 

 The plans showed a 2.5m wall which was not acceptable to the conservation 

officer and committee needed to adhere to this. 

 

 

RESOLVED:  
 
The Planning Environment Protection Committee considered the report and representations. 

A motion was proposed and seconded to REFUSE the application. The Committee 

RESOLVED (10 for, 1 abstain) to REFUSE the planning permission.  

10



 

REASON FOR THE DECISION: 

 

The proposal was unacceptable having been assessed in light of all material 

considerations, including weighing against relevant policies of the development plan.  

 

14.4 20/00599/WCPP – FORGE COTTAGE 10 THE GREEN, GLINTON, 

PETERBOROUGH 

 
The Committee received a report for which permission was sought to vary Condition 2 

(approved drawings) of planning permission 16/02087/HHFUL 'Demolition of existing 

garage and erection of annex'. 

 

- The amendments to the plans include the alterations of the external materials of the 

annex. Under the parent planning permission, 16/02087/HHFUL, the materials 

approved to the annex included smooth render to the walls, to match in colour to the 

render used on the main dwellinghouse, stone quoins and a reproduction slate roof.  

- The materials now proposed include 'Clipsham coursed walling stone' and waney 

edge large softwood weatherboard to the wall elevations of the annex, with 

reproduction slates tiles to the roof elevations. The windows and doors would be in 

aluminium, finished in dark grey (RAL 7016). Black plastic rainwater goods would also 

serve this annex.  

 

A separate planning application for a different annex, which included a basement, 

was recently considered by Officers under planning application reference 

19/01049/HHFUL. However, further to the applicant being advised that this proposal 

was not acceptable given that the proposed annex was tantamount, the application 

was later subsequently withdrawn. 

 

The Head of Planning introduced the item and highlighted key information from the 

report and the update report, 

 

Peter Flavill, the agent, addressed the Committee and responded to questions from 

Members. In summary the key points highlighted included: 

 

 The principle of the annex had already been approved and a meaningful start 

on site had been made. 

 The amendment sought in the application did not alter the siting of the 

proposal, the footprint or the ridge height. The aim was to apply a more 

subservient material to the project by way of keeping in touch with the local 

surroundings. 

 A number of calls had taken place with planning and conservation officers 

over the suitability of materials that would help soften the appearance of the 

annex. 

 The use of local limestone complimented the use of slate and natural weather 

boarding and was in keeping with annexes and outbuildings in the local area. 

 Most of the properties in close proximity were stone buildings. The materials 

being proposed were more akin to what was in the local area. 

 

 

11



The Planning and Environmental Protection Committee debated the report and in 

summary, key points raised and responses to questions included: 

 

 Originally the boarding was going to be painted or stained but had been agreed 

between all parties that these would no longer be treated and would be left to 

weather naturally. 

 The application that was proposed was sensible, the new design was an 

improvement on what the Committee had been shown previously. 

 The new treatment outlined was better than the treatment used in the previous 

application which was approved. 

 It was understandable as to why the parish council had objections, however the 

treatment being proposed was better than what had previously been agreed. 

 

RESOLVED:  

 

The Planning Environment Protection Committee considered the report and 

representations. A motion was proposed and seconded to GRANT the application. 

The Committee RESOLVED (Unanimously) to GRANT the planning permission 

subject to relevant conditions delegated to officers.  

 

REASON FOR THE DECISION: 

 

Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable 

having been assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing 

against relevant policies of the development plan and specifically:  

 

- The character and appearance of the site and the surrounding area would not be 

adversely impacted upon by the proposed development, in accordance with Sections 

66(1) and 72(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Listed Buildings and 

Conservation Areas) Act (1990) (as amended), Policies LP16 and LP19 of the 

Peterborough Local Plan (2019) and Design and Development in Selected Villages 

SPD (Glinton) (2011).  

- The proposal would not unacceptably impact upon the amenity of surrounding 

neighbours, in accordance with Policy LP17 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019).  

- Acceptable parking and turning space would be retained on-site, in accordance with 

Policy LP13 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019).  

- Trees on-site would not be adversely harmed by the proposed development, in 

accordance with Policy LP29 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019).  

- The proposal would not adversely impact upon any significant buried assets, in 

accordance with Policy LP19 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 

Chairman  

1:30pm –4.30pm 

 
 
 

12



 
 
     
 

MINUTES OF THE PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE 

MEETING 

HELD AT 1:30PM, ON 
TUESDAY, 1 SEPTEMBER 2020 

VIA ZOOM VIRTUAL CONFERENCE 
 

 
Committee Members Present: Harper (Chairman), Casey (Vice Chairman), Rush, Brown, Hiller, 
Hussain, Amjad Iqbal, Jamil, Hogg and Bond. 

 
Officers Present: Sylvia Bland, Development Management Group Lead 

Daniel Kalley, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Karen Dunleavy, Democratic Services Officer 
Stephen Turnbull, Planning Solicitor 
Nick Greaves, Principal Engineer 
 

 
15. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Jones and Warren. Councillor 

Jamil was in attendance as substitute for Councillor Jones. 
 

16.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 No declarations of interest were received. 
 

17. MEMBERS’ DECLARATION OF INTENTION TO MAKE REPRESENTATIONS AS 
WARD COUNCILLOR 
 

 There were no declarations to speak as Ward Councillor. 
 

18. MINUTES OF THE PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION MEETING 
HELD ON 30 JUNE 2020 
 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 30 June 2020 were agreed as a true and accurate 
record.  
  

19. PLANNING AND ENFORCEMENT MATTERS 
 

19.1 20/00480/FUL - 21 THE VILLIAGE ORTON LONGUEVILLE PETERBOROUGH PE2 

7DP 

 
 The Committee received a report, which sought permission to erect a detached dwelling 

and detached garage to be located within the side garden of the existing dwelling at 21 
The Village.  
 
The proposed dwelling measured approximately 15.2 metres in width by 10.1 metres in 
depth. A dual-pitched roof was proposed. The proposed ridge measured approximately 
seven point eight metres in height from ground level. The proposed eaves measured 

13



three point seven metres in height from ground level. The proposed ridge lines to the 
rear projection measured seven metres in height from ground level.  
 
The proposed eaves to the rear projection would measure four point seven metres in 
height from ground level. The proposed detached garage would measure approximately 
six point five metres in width by six point five metres in depth.  
 
A dual-pitched roof was proposed. The proposed ridge line would measure four point five 
metres in height from ground level. The proposed eaves measured two point five metres 
in height from ground level.  
 
Amendments had been sought from the original plans submitted following Officer’s 
concerns that the proposal would have caused unacceptable harm to the amenity of 
adjacent neighbours at 21a The Village, to the character and appearance of the site and 
the surrounding Orton Longueville Conservation Area.  
 
These revised plans had been consulted upon with adjacent neighbours and statutory 
consultees.  
 
All other matters were reserved for future approval; however, no reserved matters 
applications had been submitted since the determination of 17/01104/OUT. This 
permission expired on 1 September 2020. 
 

The Development Management Group Lead introduced the item and highlighted key 
information from the report and the update report. Highway concerns raised by the parish 
council were addressed and condition 13 had been removed. The applicant also 
requested that condition eight in relation to boundary treatment be removed, but there 
was insufficient detail provided in relation to the placement of fencing and hedges to do 
so.  There was a further late representation received from 21a The Village, in relation to 
construction traffic, however the issues raised had been covered by a condition within 
the report. The officer’s recommendation was to Grant the application.  
 

 Mr Richard Smith, the applicant addressed the Committee and responded to questions 

from Members. In summary the key points highlighted included: 

 

 The height of the garage should be 4.5 metres on the latest drawing and 

clarification was sought from the planning officer. 

 Although the proposal had been submitted three times the final revised version 

was acceptable to the conservation officer. 

 There were no highways issue preventing the proposal. 

 There had been only been one objector to the proposal and that was at 21a The 

Village. This objection had been made from the start of the outline planning 

application process. 

 Matrix had submitted three objections and only one was in relation to the revised 

application in relation to the location of the proposed garage and the view from a 

Dormer window. The conservation and case officers supported the location of the 

garage. 

 Matrix Planning had also suggested a condition be imposed in relation to the 

driveway access for 21 in that the first part of access for 21a should be restricted, 

however there would be no change to the current access arrangements and 

would impact in the privacy of 21a, as it does not do currently. 

 Matrix Planning had suggested removal of permitted development rights on the 

west elevation of the proposal for number 21. There was no side access for the 

property at 21a on the east and therefore any future permission for a window on 

the proposal would not impose any privacy loss for 21a as suggested. 

14



 The conservation considered that the current proposal would preserve the Orton 

Longueville conservation area and was in accordance with the Town and Country 

Planning Act, the Peterborough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy 

Framework. 

 The applicant wished for conditions eight, hard and soft landscaping and 

condition 13 be removed. The officer had confirmed that condition 13 had been 

considered.  

 The Chairman confirmed that all points raised had been dealt with by officers. 

 

 The Planning and Environmental Protection Committee debated the report and in 
summary, key points raised and responses to questions included: 
 

 Members were advised that condition eight needed to be retained within the 
planning permission, as the boundary treatment of the proposed site was too 
close to the conservation area and therefore, any change would need to be 
submitted separately. 

 The conservation officer and case officer had no further issues with the proposal 
following the applicant’s amendments. The Highways officer was also in 
agreement subject to conditions. 

 A negative comment had been made by the conservation officer in relation to the 
Dormer window, however the planning officer felt that the other changes made to 
the proposed appearance of the dwelling had deemed the application 
satisfactory. 

 Members commented that it was important to remember that the proposal was a 
reserve matters application and that the outline had already been approved. The 
initial objections had been overcome and the proposal was sound for officers 
subject to the treatment of garage door and Dormer window recommended by the 
conservation officer’s recommendation, these should be looked at by the 
applicant closely. 

 The neighbour’s amenity loss was no longer an issue. In addition, the highways 
treatment was acceptable along with the hedge height requirements. 

 The Ward Member had been approached by those objecting and supporting the 
application and felt that it was appropriate for the application to go through the 
Committee process. On that basis the Ward Member advised that he was happy 
to support the application. 

 Some Members felt that the Dormer window was not a major issue. 

 The building proposed appeared not to overlook the house at 21a The Village. 

 Members were advised that they were being asked to approve the application in 
its entirety and either approve or refuse the application. If Members felt that there 
were issues with the Dormer window, the applicant could submit a non-material 
amendment to reduce the size and use the lead lining as recommended by the 
conservation officer, however this was not something that the Committee could 
condition. 

 Members recommended to the applicant that they should explore the size of the 
Dormer window further and be mindful of the issues raised before its installation. 

 
 RESOLVED:  

 
The Planning Environment Protection Committee considered the report and 
representations. A motion was proposed and seconded to GRANT the application. The 
Committee RESOLVED (Unanimously) to GRANT the planning permission subject to 
relevant conditions delegated to officers and the removal of condition 13.  
 

 REASON FOR THE DECISION: 
 

Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal was acceptable having 

15



been assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing against 
relevant policies of the development plan and specifically:  
 

 The principle of development was acceptable. 

 The character and appearance of the site and the surrounding Orton Longueville 
Conservation Area would not be adversely harmed by the proposed 
development, in accordance with Section 72(1) of the Town and Country 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended), 
Policy LP16 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019) and Policy LP19 of the 
Peterborough Local Plan (2019).  

 Acceptable parking and highway safety measures would be secured, in 
accordance with Policy LP13 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019).  

 The proposal would not cause adverse harm to the amenity of surrounding 
neighbours, in accordance with Policy LP17 (Part A) of the Peterborough Local 
Plan (2019).  

 The impacts of the proposed development to surrounding neighbours would not 
cause unacceptable harm to their amenity, in accordance with Policy LP17 (Part 
B) of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019).  

 The proposal would not adversely impact upon any protected trees, in 
accordance with Policy LP29 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019).  

 The proposal would not adversely impact upon the drainage of the site, in 
accordance with Policy LP32 of the Peterborough Local plan (2019).  

 The proposed scheme would not disturb any significant buried heritage assets, in 
accordance with Policy LP19 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 

 

19.2 20/00729/FUL - CEDAR HOUSE SOMMER CLOSE THORNEY PETERBOROUGH 

 

The Committee received a report, which sought permission to materially change the use 
of an area of agricultural land to a building contractor’s yard and the change of use of 
some of the land to be used as an extended garden in connection with Cedar House. 
 
The building contractor’s yard would have an overall footprint of approximately 35 
metres by 110 metres, and the garden extension would be triangular in shape, with a 
maximum depth of 11.5 metres by 110 metres in length.  
 
Additionally, the application sought the erection of one point two metre high post and rail 
fencing, with hedging and trees, to demark the area of land proposed for the building 
contractor yard and garden extension, a substantial area of hardstanding, new vehicle 
access and the construction of a steel framed building, faced partially in steel profiled 
cladding and facing brickwork.  
 
The previous, identical planning application (reference 20/00429/FUL) was withdrawn 
by the applicant before determination under delegated powers. 

 
The Development Management Group Lead introduced the item and highlighted key 
information from the report and the update report, which included a representation from 
a Ward Councillor, who was in support of the application. The officer’s recommendation 
was for refusal. 
 

 

Mr Nathan Proctor, addressed the Committee and responded to questions from 
Members. In summary the key points highlighted included: 
 

 The applicant had located to the village of Thorney approximately five years ago 
after purchasing what was known as Cedar House.  

 The property was an old dilapidated house on the old A47.  

 After purchasing, the applicant gained planning permission to demolish the old 
house and build a new one for his family home. 

16



 The current company location had become difficult to travel to and the applicant 
wanted it located closer to where he lived.  

 The company had employed local people and traded with local suppliers. 

 The applicant and his sister were the directors and owners of Woodgate 
Developments Ltd. 

 Woodgate Developments provided new housing in local authority areas, such as 
Peterborough City Council, South Holland, Fenland, West Norfolk.  

 The business operated from two locations currently with a small office connected 
to the directors’ parents’ home.  

 The new proposed facilities were needed to take the business further, as the 
existing facilities were not adequate. 

 The applicant felt that the business being located close to home would be a 
massive advantage in the day to day operation of the company. If granted, the 
proposal would allow the company to employ additional staff. 

 The proposed building would be at one end of the site and there would be limited 
screening. The access would be off Sommer Close, which was a good access. 

 The plan was to keep the new proposed building in keeping with the existing 
Cedar House where possible. 

 A good landscaping scheme was in place for the proposed scheme.  

 The new facility would be accessed from the old A47, which had been more than 
adequate.  

 The applicant had received support from the Ward Councillor and only neighbour 
at Sommer Barns. 

 The reason the triangle area of land was proposed to be used to extend the 
garden had happened due to a boundary discrepancy with the farmland. The 
applicant was willing to remove this part of the proposal from the garden 
extension and would screen off the area. 

 The field was currently used for agricultural use and owned by local farmers. 

 The existing site was 15 miles away from the proposed site and other parts of 
the business were also in other locations.  

 

 

The Planning and Environmental Protection Committee debated the report and in 
summary, key points raised and responses to questions included: 
 

 Members were advised that the land could only be used for agricultural use. 

 Members were concerned about the application and as the land was open 

countryside. The field was currently farmed, and this should be protected.  

 Members also raised concerns that if approved, the proposal could set a 

precedence for similar applications. 

 Some Members felt that Peterborough would never have developed to its current 

status if permission had not been granted on similar parcels of land. 

 Members felt sympathy for the applicant and could understand why he wanted to 

extend his own property to expand the business and protect his construction 

machinery, however the unit would not be for agricultural use.  

 Members commented that a farmer could apply for planning permission for the 

use of agricultural machinery and then sub-let the building for the storage of 

construction machinery. 

 Some Members were concerned about the portion of land proposed to extend 

the applicant’s garden and if this was taken out of the proposal it may look more 

favourable. 

 Members commented that building on agricultural land would always be a 

contentious issue, and therefore the Committee would be overlooking 

fundamental planning policy if the application was approved. 

 The proposal size was only one percent of the surrounding agricultural field. 

17



 Members also commented that it may be more sustainable if the proposal was 

for agricultural equipment and therefore the proposal should be refused. 

 Members commented that the Committee was charged with protecting the 

environment and planning policy and to go against that would be unacceptable. 

 There was not a strong enough case to go against the planning officer’s 

recommendation. 

 

 

RESOLVED:  
 
The Planning Environment Protection Committee considered the report and 
representations. A motion was proposed and seconded to go with the officers 
recommendation to REFUSE the application. The Committee RESOLVED (9 for and 1 
against) to REFUSE the planning permission.  
 
 

 

REASON FOR THE DECISION: 
The proposal was unacceptable having been assessed in light of all material 
considerations, including weighing against relevant policies of the development plan 
and for the specific reasons given below. It was considered that the harm arising from 
the development, in that the principle was wholly contrary to the policies and objectives 
of the adopted Local Plan, was not outweighed by the benefits of the development 
which would be primarily restricted to that of private commercial benefit for the 
Applicant. 
 

 
19.3 20/00782/HHFUL - 1 RECTORY LANE GLINTON PETERBOROUGH PE6 7LR 

 

The Committee received a report, which sought the benefit of planning permission for 
the erection of a single storey detached double garage with attached covered walkway, 
first floor extension and single storey rear extension with conversion of existing garage.  
 
Amendments were made to the originally submitted plans in line with the 
recommendations made by the Council's Principal Conservation Officer. The 
Conservation Officer was of the view that the original linear design elongated the 
application dwelling which was already a linear building as existing. This was especially 
important due to the close proximity of the host dwelling to the highway and that it was 
the first dwelling on the east side of Rectory Lane, thus forming a prominent feature in 
views. Not least it was within the setting of listed buildings opposite and to the north-
east, the Bluebell.  
 
Given the concerns raised by the Conservation Officer in relation to the scale and 
dominant elongation of the property within the street scene, revised plans were 
submitted, which effectively detached the garage from the house by a short distance 
and set it back from the building line, creating some visual separation. It also lowered 
the roof pitch and introduced a more subservient material for its elevations, above a 
brick plinth which would match the host dwelling. 

 
The Development Management Group Lead introduced the item and highlighted key 
information from the report and the update report, which included a written 
representation submitted by a Parish Councillor. The Officer’s recommendation was to 
grant the application. 
 

 

Parish Councillor, Johnson addressed the Committee and responded to questions from 
Members. In summary the key points highlighted included: 

 The Parish Council had not objected to the planning application and supported 
the Planning Officer’s recommendation for approval. However, the only objection 

18



from the Parish Council was to the installation of timber cladding as a finished 
material. 

 There were no other timber clad properties in the vicinity, which also included 
the Bluebell Public House. 

 The proposal was in contradiction to Council’s own planning policy set out in the 
design in selected villages as outlined in the officer’s report.  

 The Parish Council urged the Committee to approve the application with the 
imposition of conditions in relation to C2 and C3, dependent on the materials 
being the same as what was installed on the existing building. This would 
conform with Glinton 10 in the planning policy document. The document stated 
that Brickwork and stonework should match the materials of the existing building. 

 

 

Councillor Holdich, the applicant addressed the Committee and responded to questions 
from Members. In summary the key points highlighted included: 
 

 The Parish Council had objected to the materials proposed for the application. 
However, there had been lots of advice provided by the officer about materials 
that could be used, and the application was amended to conform with the 
requirements. 

 The alteration to the house was needed due to the current size of rooms in the 
existing buildings. The extension was also required to provide larger area for 
health reasons of its residents. 

 The Planning Committee had approved a similar application in the area on 31 
July 2020, which would use the same cladding. 

 

 

The Planning and Environmental Protection Committee debated the report and in 
summary, key points raised and responses to questions included: 
 

 Members were advised that the approved application heard on 31 July 2020 had 

timber cladding as one of the materials and was located on the garage on the 

other side of the green, however, every application should be considered on its 

own merit. 

 The Conservations Officer’s stated the reasons why timber cladding would be 

appropriate as it would be a softer material opposed to brick, which would face 

the listed building, the Bluebell Public House. 

 Members were advised that Glinton policy 10 had stated that buildings should 

contain brick or stone, however the Conservation Officer’s interpretation was that 

the outbuilding should use natural building material and blend in with the listed 

building. The Conservation Officer’s recommendation was in the spirit of the 

conservation area for detached outbuilding requirements and therefore was 

acceptable.  

 The Ward Councillor had no objection to the proposal and the application had 

followed the natural form of the village and the materials proposed for the 

detached garage was an excellent suggestion by the Conservation Officer, 

which had been endorsed by the Planning Officer. 

 Members commended the applicant had sought guidance from the Planning 

team to create a robust application and there had been no reason to refuse it. 

 

 

RESOLVED:  
 
The Planning Environment Protection Committee considered the report and 
representations. A motion was proposed and seconded to GRANT the application. The 
Committee RESOLVED (Unanimously) to GRANT the planning permission subject to 
relevant conditions delegated to officers.  
 

19



 
 
 
 

 

REASON FOR THE DECISION: 
 
Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal was acceptable having 
been assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing against 
relevant policies of the development plan and specifically:  

 

 The impact of the proposal on the character of the area was considered to be in 
accordance with Policies LP16 and LP19 of the Peterborough Local Plan 
(2019); and  

 The impact of the proposal on the amenity of the occupiers of neighbouring 
dwellings was considered on balance to be in accordance with Policy LP17 of 
the Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 

 
Chairman  

1:30pm –3:00pm 

 

 

20



The Site

Print Date: 09/09/2020

Committee Location Plan 20/00708/FUL Acorn Lodge Kennels And Cattery Thorney Road Eye Peterborough PE6 7UA "The Plan" NTS

±© OS Crown Copyright Licence 100024236
1:1,000

0 10 20 30 405
Meters

Scale
21



This page is intentionally left blank

22



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 1 

Item: No. 1 
 
Planning and Environmental Protection Committee  
 
Application Ref: 20/00708/FUL  
 
Proposal: Proposed replacement staff facilities, Vet room and one bed staff 

accommodation 
 
Site: Acorn Lodge Kennels and Cattery, Thorney Road, Eye, Peterborough 
Applicant: Acorn Kennels and Cattery 
Agent: Gowler Architectural 
Site visit: 13.8.20 
 
Call in:  Cllr Simons has called the application into PEP Committee as the 

proposal would be of great benefit to grow this successful business 
in a rural ward and temporary/occasional accommodation for staff 
could easily be conditioned to the business. 

 
Case officer: Mr M A Thomson 
Telephone No. 01733 4501733 453478 
E-Mail: matt.thomson@peterborough.gov.uk 
 
Recommendation:  REFUSE   
 

 
1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal 
 
Site Description 
The application site comprises an established Kennels and Cattery business situated 300 metres 
outside the settlement boundary of Eye village, adjacent to the A47 and Thorney Road. The site is 
bounded by arable farmland on all sides. The site comprises an extended bungalow, where it is 
understood that the owners and operators reside, a car park and a number of outbuildings, with a 
large lawned garden area to the east of the bungalow.  
 
It is important to note that the site is host to single storey buildings, the tallest of which is the 
bungalow standing at 6m in height.  
 
Pre-Amble 
It is important to emphasise that local and national planning policy only supports the erection of a 
self-contained dwelling in the open countryside providing that it is demonstrably necessary for a 
worker to reside on site. Any such proposal is required to meet ‘all’ of the functional and financial 
tests set out under Policy LP11: Part D (New Dwellings in the Countryside), and must demonstrate 
why such accommodation could not be met by an existing dwelling on site, or through suitable 
conversion of an existing building, and demonstrate that there is no suitable accommodation within 
nearby settlements.  
 
In 2016 planning permission was sought for two staff cottages, and in 2017 planning permission 
was sought for a single storey staff cottage, however both applications were withdrawn further to 
Officer advice, advising that there was insufficient justification for the erection of a new dwelling in 
the open countryside, and that the dwellings proposed did not meet the financial and functional 
exception tests.  
 
In 2019 planning permission was sought under App Ref: 19/01217/FUL for 'Proposed replacement 
staff facilities, vet room and one-bed staff accommodation flat', however this application was 
withdrawn as insufficient information had been submitted to demonstrate that the development 
would meet the financial and functional tests as set out under Policy LP11: Part D.  

23



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 2 

 
This application is a resubmission of the 2019 application seeking the same proposal. It should be 
highlighted that, despite several requests by Officers as part of this application (22.07.20, 12.08.20 
& 01.09.20) and previous applications, that the proposal has not been robustly justified against 
Policy LP11: Part D.   
 
Proposal 
The Applicant seeks planning permission for the erection of two story building comprising 
replacement staff facilities and vet room at ground floor, and a one-bed, self-contained flat to be 
used as staff accommodation at first floor.  
 
The proposed building would be two storey, with a floor area of 14.6m x 4.3m and proposes to 
stand at 5.3m to eaves and 6.6m to ridge utilising brick and tile.  
 
The supporting information states that the self-contained flat would only be used by a member of 
staff when the Applicant, who currently resides on site, is away. It is stated that a vet is not 
required to stay on site overnight.  
 
2 Planning History 
 
Reference Proposal Decision Date 
    
19/01217/FUL 
 
 
17/01506/FUL 
 
 
16/01907/FUL 
 
 
09/01398/FUL 
 
 
09/01397/FUL 
 
08/01503/FUL 
 
 
07/00495/FUL 
 
04/00378/FUL 
 
90/P0332 
 
P0190/75 
 
P0005/75 

Proposed replacement staff facilities, vet 
room and one-bed staff accommodation flat  
 
Proposed single storey staff cottage 
 
 
Proposed staff cottages 
 
 
Removal of manager's caravan and 
construction of manager's bungalow 
 
Proposed extension to grooming room 
 
Additional vehicle access and front 
boundary wall 
 
Construction of 22 unit kennel block 
 
Creation of additional vehicular access 
 
Construction of dog kennels and runs 
 
Erection of boarding kennels for cats 
 
Erection of a summer house for use as a 
reception office 

Withdrawn 
by Applicant  
 
Withdrawn 
by Applicant 
 
Withdrawn 
by Applicant 
 
Withdrawn 
by Applicant 
 
Permitted 
 
Permitted 
 
 
Permitted 
 
Permitted 
 
Permitted 
 
Permitted 
 
Permitted 

30/09/2019 
 
 
23/12/2016 
 
 
25/10/2017 
 
 
01/02/2010 
 
 
29/01/2010 
 
12/03/2009 
 
 
11/06/2007 
 
21/06/2004 
 
04/05/1990 
 
18/04/1975 
 
21/02/1975 

 
3 Planning Policy 
 
Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019) 
 

24



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 3 

Paragraph 84 - Supporting a Prosperous Rural Economy  
It should be recognised that to meet local business and community needs in rural areas site may 
have to be found adjacent to or beyond existing settlements, in locations not well served by public 
transport. In such circumstances development will need to be sensitive to its surroundings, not 
have an unacceptable impact on local roads and exploit opportunities to make the location more 
sustainable. The use of previously developed land and site that are physically well-related to 
existing settlements should be encouraged. 
 
Peterborough Local Plan 2016 to 2036 (2019) 
 
LP02 - The Settle Hierarchy and the Countryside  
The location/scale of new development should accord with the settlement hierarchy. Proposals 
within village envelopes will be supported in principle, subject to them being of an appropriate 
scale. Development in the open countryside will be permitted only where key criteria are met. 
 
LP03 - Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development  
Provision will be made for an additional 21,315 dwellings from April 2016 to March 2036 in the 
urban area, strategic areas/allocations. 
 
LP04 - Strategic Strategy for the Location of Employment, Skills and University 
Development  
LP4c) The expansion of existing businesses located outside of allocated sites will be supported 
provided existing buildings are re-used where possible, there would be no unacceptable amenity, 
highway or character impacts.  
 
LP4d) Conversions and redevelopment of non-allocated employment sites to non-allocated 
employment uses will be considered on their merits taking into consideration the impact on the 
area, the viability of the development including marketing evidence and the impact of continued 
use of the site. 
 
LP11 - Development in the Countryside  
Part A: Re-Use and Conversion of Non-Residential Buildings for Residential Use in the 
Countryside- Change of use proposals will be supported provided that the use has not ceased, for 
agricultural buildings they were not constructed in the last 10 years, no more than 3 units would be 
created, significant reconstruction is not required and there are no fundamental constraints to 
delivery or harm arising. 
 
Part D: New Dwellings in the Countryside- Permission for a permanent dwelling in the countryside 
for an agricultural worker will only be granted to support existing agricultural activities on a well 
established agricultural unit subject to demonstration of a functional need which cannot be met by 
an existing dwelling or conversion. 
 
LP13 - Transport  
LP13a) New development should ensure that appropriate provision is made for the transport needs 
that it will create including reducing the need to travel by car, prioritisation of bus use, improved 
walking and cycling routes and facilities.  
 
LP13b) The Transport Implications of Development- Permission will only be granted where 
appropriate provision has been made for safe access for all user groups and subject to appropriate 
mitigation. 
 
LP13c) Parking Standards- permission will only be granted if appropriate parking provision for all 
modes of transport is made in accordance with standards. 
 
LP16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm  
Development proposals would contribute positively to the character and distinctiveness of the area. 
They should make effective and efficient use of land and buildings, be durable and flexible, use 

25



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 4 

appropriate high quality materials, maximise pedestrian permeability and legibility, improve the 
public realm, address vulnerability to crime, and be accessible to all. 
 
LP17 - Amenity Provision  
LP17a) Part A Amenity of Existing Occupiers- Permission will not be granted for development 
which would result in an unacceptable loss of privacy, public and/or private green space or natural 
daylight; be overbearing or cause noise or other disturbance, odour or other pollution; fail to 
minimise opportunities for crime and disorder. 
 
LP17b) Part B Amenity of Future Occupiers- Proposals for new residential development should be 
designed and located to ensure that they provide for the needs of the future residents. 
 
LP27 - Landscape Character  
New development in and adjoining the countryside should be located and designed in a way that is 
sensitive to its landscaping setting, retaining and enhancing the landscape character. 
 
LP32 - Flood and Water Management  
Proposals should adopt a sequential approach to flood risk management in line with the NPPF and 
council's Flood and Water Management SPD.. Sustainable drainage systems should be used 
where appropriate. Development proposals should also protect the water environment. 
 
LP33 - Development on Land Affected by Contamination  
Development must take into account the potential environmental impacts arising from the 
development itself and any former use of the site.  If it cannot be established that the site can be 
safely developed with no significant future impacts on users or ground/surface waters, permission 
will be refused. 
 
4 Consultations/Representations 
 
Archaeological Officer  
No objection - The proposed development site and surrounding area contain no known heritage 
assets. Given the small scale of the proposed groundwork, the extent of impact on potential buried 
remains is deemed to be negligible. 
 
PCC Peterborough Highways Services  
No objection – It would appear that the  ‘vet  room’  is  intended  to  be  ancillary  to  the  main  
kennel  and cattery  business,  catering  for  the  resident  animals,  with  the  staff  accommodation  
being for a similar purpose. As such the Local highway Authority have no objections to the 
proposal, subject to a condition being appended with respect to the provision of temporary facilities 
during construction.  
 
Cambridgeshire Fire & Rescue Service  
No objection - Should the Planning Authority be minded to grant approval, the Fire Authority would 
ask that adequate provision be made for fire hydrants, which may be by way of Section 106  
agreement or a planning condition.  
 
Where a Section 106 agreement or a planning condition has been secured, the cost of Fire 
Hydrants will be recovered from the developer.  
 
The number and location of Fire Hydrants will be determined following Risk Assessment and with 
reference to guidance contained within the “National Guidance Document on the Provision of 
Water for Fire Fighting” 3rd Edition, published January 2007.  
 
Access and facilities for the Fire Service should also be provided in accordance with the Building 
Regulations Approved Document B5, Section 16. 
 
PCC Pollution Team  

26



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 5 

No objection – Subject to the occupiers of the flat being linked to the business.  
 
Eye Parish Council  
No objection 
 
North Level District Internal Drainage Board  
No objection 
 
Local Residents/Interested Parties  
 
Initial consultations: 2 
Total number of responses: 1 
Total number of objections: 0 
Total number in support: 0 
 
No letters of representation have been received. The response received relates to Parish Council 
comments, noted above.  
 
Councillor Simons has called the application into Planning and Environmental Protection 
Committee as ‘the Applicant is asking for temporary/occasional accommodation for staff attached 
to the business, which could easily be conditioned. Also we believe it would be of great benefit to 
grow this successful business in the rural ward, as per policy LP4’.  
  
5 Assessment of the planning issues 
 
The Principle of Development 
From the supporting statement it is understood that the proposed self-contained flat (bedroom, 
living/kitchen room and bathroom) would be for a member of staff who would 'occasionally' reside 
on site when the Applicant, who resides on the site, is away. It is understood that currently when 
the Applicant is away, staff members stay within the existing bungalow.   
 
In support of the application is a statement from the RSPCA, whereby staff on call  '... take  in 
unwanted  animals  and  provide  the  care  required including  throughout  the  night  checking  on  
distressed  animals  regularly  and  calling veterinary help if needed'.  
 
It is understood from the Appellants statement that ‘providing permanent night shift cover is not 
practical or financially due to the infrequent and inconsistent need  for  this cover.  The Applicant 
living on site normally provides the overnight cover [and] staff would only be using the 
accommodation when the applicant is unable to provide the 24hour cover required’ 
 

Officer Comments:- The Applicant has confirmed that vets do not stay on site overnight, 
that there would be no need for permanent on-site cover, that the Applicant normally 
provides this cover whilst residing on site, and would only be used when the Applicant is 
unable to provide any necessary cover. As such, the accommodation would not be for a full 
time worker, and therefore is contrary to LP11.   

 
It is also stated that 'currently anyone looking after the kennels in [the owners] absence uses their 
family bungalow'. The statement goes on to state that it would be unreasonable for staff to be 
accommodated in Eye Village as '... the staff could be required to visit  the kennels several times  
throughout  the night  depending  on callouts and  presence  of  animals in need of more care.  As 
a duty of care to any sick or distressed animals the staff member being on site to address this 
quickly'. 
 

Officer Comments:- It is clear from the Applicant’s statement that there is suitable 
accommodation within the existing bungalow which currently exists on site, in the infrequent 
event that the Applicant’s are away. It should also be highlighted that there is an existing 
staff room on site, therefore a vet or member of staff would have somewhere to operate 

27



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 6 

from during a night shift.  
 
In summary, the proposed self-contained dwelling would only be used for occasional temporary 
cover by staff as and when the Applicants who currently reside on site are away.  
 
Planning Considerations 
Policy LP11: Part D is for new dwellings in the countryside, relating to agricultural workers, forestry 
and other enterprises where a countryside location is essential. The proposal must be considered 
as a self-contained dwelling as the proposal would have no reliance on the host dwelling, which is 
occupied by the Applicant.  
 
Policy LP11 states that 'planning permission for a permanent dwelling in the countryside to enable 
[a] worker to live at, or in the immediate vicinity of, their place of work will only be granted to 
support existing ... activities on a well-established ... unit...‘ provided the proposal meets all of the 
following criteria;  
 
l. there is a clearly established existing functional need (i.e. it is essential for the proper 
functioning of the enterprise for one or more workers to be on the site for all or most of the 
time); and 
Officer Response:- In support of the application is a contract with the RSPCA, whereby the 
Applicants have committed to providing 24/7 care, however this is an open contract with no fixed 
end date. The Agent has confirmed that there is no set time period for this contract, however it has 
been on-going for 3 or 4 years. As such it would appear that the contract could be terminated 
tomorrow. 
 
The application has not been accompanied by a formal register setting out how frequent the 
RSPCA uses the site, however the Agent has confirmed by email that on average 4x times per 
week the police or other services require out of ours help, 2x times per week emergency cover for 
pets (i.e owner taken into hospital) or strays, and once per month for significant RSPCA out of 
hours help rehoming more than 4 animals. It is understood that this latter requirement requires 
more attention as animals are often in poor health and need more care.  
 
In these events it is understood that the member of staff would be required to check each animal 
brought in and care for it accordingly, if necessary call a vet. The member of staff would need to be 
one of the more qualified members of staff to be able to recognise when this is required. 
 
The Agent goes on to state that a vet is not required for stay’s overnight; it would be a member of 
staff when the Applicant is not able to provide the overnight cover at intermittent times, such as 
when the Applicant is on holidays, nights out etc. It is understood that the applicant normally 
carries this out, and in the past staff have stopped in the applicant’s bungalow, however this has 
significant privacy issues. 
 
Based on the submitted information Officers have strong concerns as to the functional need for an 
additional member of staff to reside within a self-contained flat on the site. As confirmed by the 
Agent a vet would not be required to reside on the site, the dwelling would only be required for very 
occasional respite care when the Applicant is away. Further, members of staff have historically 
resided within the Applicant’s home when they have been required to stay overnight, there is 
therefore an established solution.   
 
It is not considered that there is a functional need for an additional worker to reside on site, 
therefore the proposal is considered to be contrary to Policy LP11, Part D(l).  
 
m. the need relates to a full-time worker, or one who is primarily employed in agriculture 
and does not relate to a part-time requirement; and 
Officer Response:- As set out above the Applicant's currently reside on site, who are understood to 
be employed by the business full time. The supporting justification is that the operators of the site 
are required to take in unwanted animals over a 24/7 period.  

28



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 7 

 
From the submitted information it is understood that the RSPCA contract has been in place since 
July 2019, however as mentioned above there is no end date and could be terminated at any time. 
Further, it has been confirmed in writing by the Agent that the accommodation would only be for 
occasional use when the Applicant is away.  
 
As such, the need for the dwelling does not relate to a full-time worker is therefore contrary to 
Policy LP11: Part D(m).  
 
n. the unit and the ... activity concerned has been established for at least three years, has 
been profitable for at least one of them and is currently financially sound with a clear 
prospect of remaining so; and 
Officer Response:- The site has been in situ for more than 3 years, however no financial 
information has been provided to demonstrate that the business is financially sound, whether there 
would be sufficient finances to demolish the existing building, erect the proposed two storey 
building and provide wages for a full time worker. 
 
It is important to highlight that this provision of Policy LP11 requires the business to demonstrate it 
would remain finically sound in perpetuity. Given that the RSPCA contract is for an indefinite 
period, the requirement for 24/7 care could cease at any time, therefore eliminating the need for 
the proposed dwelling.  
 
As such it has not been demonstrated that this element of the business has been considered on a 
sound financial basis, with a clear prospect of remaining so, and is therefore contrary to Policy 
LP11: Part D(n).  
 
o. the functional need cannot be fulfilled by an existing dwelling, or the conversion of an 
existing building in the area, or any other existing accommodation in the area which is 
suitable and available for occupation by the worker concerned. 
Officer Response:- There is an existing dwelling on site which is currently occupied by the 
Applicant’s and is within the redline of the submitted site location plan. Insufficient justification has 
been provided demonstrating why this dwelling could not be adapted or extended to provide some 
form of on-site accommodation for a worker.  
 
Further, the application site is situated 1.2km and 960m from the village centres of Eye and Eye 
Green, where at the time of writing this report (02.09.20) there are currently 59x dwellings listed for 
sale on www.rightmove.com starting from £70,000.  
 
Within the supporting statement it is stated that staff may be required to make multiple checks 
overnight, however there currently already exists a staff room on site, as well as the Applicant's 
dwelling. And given the distance to Eye and Eye Green, a worker could be on site within minutes. 
As such it is considered the functional need can be provided either on site, or within the nearby 
villages of Eye and Eye Green. As such the proposal is considered to be contrary to Policy LP11: 
Part D(o).  
 
Supporting Existing Businesses 
Cllr Simons has referred the application to the Planning and Environment Planning Committee as it 
is felt that the proposal accords with Policy LP4. This policy supports the principle of expanding 
existing businesses outside of an allocated employment site providing any such proposal meets 4 
criteria, which are as follows; 
 
- existing buildings are reused where possible; 
Officer Response: As set out above there is an existing dwelling situated on site, as well as a 
number of existing kennel buildings; it has not been satisfactorily justified as to why this dwelling or 
any of the existing buildings on site could not otherwise be adapted or extended. 
 
- they do not conflict with neighbouring land uses; 

29



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 8 

Officer Response: Due to the juxtaposition of the application site and that the neighbouring land 
uses are agricultural, there is therefore no conflict with land use.  
 
- they will not impact unacceptably on the local and/or strategic highway network; and 
Officer Response: This is discussed in further detail below, however there would be no adverse 
highway safety impact. 
 
- the proposal would not have an adverse impact on the character and appearance of the 
area. 
Officer Response: This is expanded upon below, however there are concerns of introducing a two 
storey building, which proposes to stand at 6.6m in height, onto a site which is characterised by 
single storey development, including but not limited to the Applicant's bungalow, which is currently 
the tallest building on the site standing at 6m in height.  
 
In summary it has not been demonstrated that there is need for an additional worker to reside on 
site, there has been no financial information provided to demonstrate that the business could fund 
the proposed works, employ an additional full-time member of staff and that the business is 
financially sound, and the Applicant has not justified why it would not be possible to adapt the 
existing dwelling or building on site, or why it would not be possible to accommodate the additional 
worker within the villages of Eye or Eye Green. As such the proposal is contrary to Policies LP4 
and LP11: Part D of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 
 
As the principle of development is not supported, it is not considered reasonable to use planning 
conditions to tie the proposed self-contained residential dwelling to the Applicant’s dwelling and/or 
the business in this instance.  
 
Access and Parking 
The Local Planning Authority has raised no objections on the basis that the proposed 
accommodation would be ancillary to the existing business. Subject to securing on-site temporary 
facilities for the parking, turning and loading during construction, and that the dwelling be tied to the 
business, the site would retain satisfactory off-site parking and the proposal would not constitute a 
highway safety hazard.  
 
Whilst the proposal may not raise highway safety concerns, the proposal conflicts with the Local 
Plan in principle. 
 
Existing and Future Occupier Amenity 
The proposal has been submitted on the basis that it would be occupied occasionally by staff 
members associated with the business only, and therefore would, for all intents and purposes, be 
tied to the business. The proposal introduces a set of double opening doors and a juliett balcony 
facing east at first floor, however as the proposed dwelling would be tied to the business, the 
relationship to the host dwelling is accepted in this instance.  
 
Each room would be provided with a satisfactory outlook, and levels of natural light to habitable 
rooms, however the proposal is not provided with any dedicated private amenity space. There is an 
argument that the self-contained dwelling would only be occupied occasionally by a worker, 
therefore is it not required to be provided with a dedicated amenity space, however in the fullness 
of time it could be occupied by a member of staff more regularly.  
 
As expanded elsewhere within this report the proposal would be contrary to Policy LP11, however 
putting the ‘part time occupancy’ to one side, were the principle of development accepted a 
condition could be attached which ties the dwelling to the business, and that the dwelling is not 
occupied as a member of staffs primary residence.  
 
Design and Layout 
The application site comprises a number of large single storey buildings, including the host 
dwelling, which is currently the tallest building within the application site standing at 6m in height. 

30



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 9 

The largest of the outbuildings and bungalow are constructed out of red brick, however the 
remaining buildings appear to be pre-fabricated steel/clad construction. The site is bounded by a 
brick wall and hedging to the east and south, a leylandii hedge to the west and facing the A47 is 
concrete post fencing.  
 
The building to be demolished is flat roofed, it is of no historic or architectural merit and its loss is 
accepted. This single storey structure would be replaced by a two storey brick built building with a 
relatively shallow double pitched roof. The upper floor would be served by openings on the east, 
west and north elevations, including a Juliet balcony on the east elevation facing the bungalow, 
however the south elevation facing Thorney Road would be blank.  
 
By reason of size, scale, massing and design, the proposal would introduce a large monotonous 
two storey building situated within the centre of the site which would be at odds with the single 
storey built form of the application site, unbalancing the established hierarchy of buildings at the 
detriment to the character and appearance of the immediate area. Further, this unacceptably 
harmful impact would be exacerbated when viewing the site from the south, whereby it would be 
possible to see a large blank wall and a domesticated Juliet balcony on a narrow side elevation, on 
what would be an ancillary outbuilding serving an established business in the open countryside.  
 
The application site is situated within the open countryside, outside of the settlement boundary of 
Eye. The immediate area is characterised by 'intrinsically flat fenland landscape', which is 
characterised by large arable fields, groupings of trees and isolated dwellings and farmsteads. It is 
recognised that the application site is currently well manicured, however it is not considered it 
could mitigate the proposed two storey building situated off-centre within the site. The proposal 
would be visually prominent from the public realm, particularly from the A47 to the north which is 
on a slightly higher level, and Thorney Road. As such it is considered the two storey element would 
not only harm the character and appearance of the immediate area, but the wider landscape 
character.  
 
As such the proposal is considered to be contrary to Policies LP4, LP16 and LP27 of the 
Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 
 
6 Conclusions 
 
The proposal is unacceptable having been assessed in light of all material considerations, 
including weighing against relevant policies of the development plan and for the specific reasons 
given below. 
 
7 Recommendation 
 
The case officer recommends that Planning Permission is REFUSED 
  
R1 The application site is situated within the open countryside; it has not been demonstrated 

that there is a substantiated need for an additional worker to reside on site, there has been 
no financial information provided to demonstrate that the business could fund the proposed 
works, employ an additional full-time member of staff and that the business has been 
planned on a financially sound basis, and the Applicant has not justified why it would not be 
possible to adapt or extend the existing dwelling on site, or why it would not be possible to 
accommodate the additional worker within the nearby villages of Eye or Eye Green. As 
such the proposal is contrary to Policies LP2, LP4 and LP11 of the Peterborough Local 
Plan (2019). 

 
R2  The application site is situated within the open countryside, outside of the settlement 

boundary of Eye. The immediate area is identified as 'intrinsically flat fenland landscape', 
which is characterised by large arable fields, groupings of trees and isolated dwellings and 
farmsteads. The application site is characterised by single storey development, and the 
proposed two storey building, which would be taller than the existing buildings on site, 

31



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 10 

would be visually prominent from the public realm, particularly from the A47 to the north 
and Thorney Road to the south. Further, by reason of size, scale, layout and appearance, 
the proposed two storey building and associated domestic openings would harm the 
character and appearance of the immediate area and wider landscape character area. As 
such the proposal is contrary to Policies LP4, LP16 and LP27 of the Peterborough Local 
Plan (2019). 

 

 

Copies to Cllrs Allen, Brown and Simons. 

32



The Site

Print Date: 02/10/2020

Planning Committee Location Plan 20/01005/TRE 7 Enfield Gardens Netherton Peterborough PE3 9RP "The Plan" NTS

±© OS Crown Copyright Licence 100024236
1:1,000

0 10 20 30 405
Meters

Scale
33



This page is intentionally left blank

34



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 1 

Item No. 02 
 
Planning and EP Committee  20 October 2020         
 
Application Ref: 20/01005/TRE  
 
Proposal: TPO 07/1995 (95/00007/TPO) T.38 Willow - Re-pollard back to the 

previous pollarding points to avoid limb failure also to provide clearance to 
a street light and over the public highway. 

 
Site: 7 Enfield Gardens, Netherton, Peterborough, PE3 9RP 
 
Applicant:                      Cllr Ash 
 
Reason:                         The applicant is a Ward Councillor 
  
Site visit: 10.08.2020 
 
Case officer: Mr Stephen Chesney-Beales 
 
Telephone No. 01733 453465 
 
E-Mail: stephen.chesney-beales@peterborough.gov.uk 
 
Recommendation: GRANT subject to relevant conditions   
 

 
1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal 
 
Site Description 
 
An application has been received to carry out works to a Weeping Willow tree protected by Tree 
Preservation Order 7 of 1995.  The mature Weeping Willow is growing in the eastern corner of the 
rear garden of the applicant’s property. The tree has been pollarded historically and is 
approximately 20m high and has a crown spread in excess of 7m. The lower crown is less than 2m 
from ground level in places and is overhanging the boundary fence and  the public right of way that 
links Wilton Close through to Meynell Walk and the road. There is a PCC street light that is also 
partially obscured.  
 
Proposal 
 
The proposal is to re- pollard the tree back to the previous pollarding points These works are to 
prevent crown failure and to provide clearances to the street light and highway. These cyclical 
works were previously approved in application reference 12/01284/TRE P&EP Cttee, Item No.2, 
09.10.2012. 
 
The application has been referred to the Planning Committee as the applicant is Councillor Ash. 
 
 

35



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 2 

2 Planning History 
 
Reference Proposal Decision Date 
12/01284/TRE Thin crown by 30%, repollard at historic 

knuckle points and provide lightpole 
clearance of 2m or 45 degrees from head 
height to the top of the pole of if required to 
allow light spread to reach the PROW on 
Willow tree - TPO 07/1995 
 

Permitted  11/10/2012 

 
3 Planning Policy 
 
Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012   
 

Peterborough Trees & Woodlands Strategy 2018 
 
  
4 Consultations/Representations 
 
No comments received 
 
Local Residents/Interested Parties  
 
Initial consultations: 0 
Total number of responses: 0 
Total number of objections: 0 
Total number in support: 0 
 
 
5 Assessment of the planning issues 
 
The main considerations are: 
 

a) Are the works deemed appropriate in line with Arboricultural best practice? 
b) Will the works be detrimental to the visual amenity value of the tree?  

 
a) Once a tree has been pollarded, there is a need to manage as such thereafter. The reason 

being that once pollarded the proliferation of new growth is weakly attached to tree and 
more prone to failure.  It is thus considered sound arboricultural management to re-pollard 
such trees on cyclical basis. Failure to re-pollard the tree would result in a Health and 
Safety liability to the owner. 

b) The visual amenity value of the tree will be reduced in the short term, but within two  
growing seasons, the tree will have formed a new crown.  

 
 
 
6 Conclusions 
 
Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having been 
assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing against relevant policies of 
the Peterborough Tree and Woodland Strategy and guidance within the  Town and Country 
Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012   
 

36



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 3 

 
7 Recommendation 
 
The Executive Director of Place and Economy recommends that this Notice of Works to Tree(s) 
protected by a Tree Preservation Order is GRANTED subject to the following conditions: 
 
C 1 The above tree work, to which this permission relates, must be completed no later than the 

expiration of two years beginning with the date of this decision notice. 
  
 Reason: The Local Planning Authority would wish to review the decision and the proposal 

after two years from the date of this consent so that it may take into account the growth 
pattern and condition of the tree(s) at that time. 

  
 C 2 All works shall be carried out to conform to British Standard 3998:2010, Recommendations 

for Tree Works. 
  
 Reason:  In the interests of good arboricultural practice and the visual amenity of the 

Weeping Willow, in accordance with the Peterborough Tree and Woodland Strategy 2018-
2028. 

 
Copies to Ward Councillors Ed Murphy, Gul Nawaz & Lucinda Robinson 
  
 

 

37



This page is intentionally left blank

38


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meeting Held on:
	01 09 2020 - Planning and Environmental Protection Committee

	5.1 20/00708/FUL - Acorn Lodge Kennels And Cattery Thorney Road Eye Peterborough.
	Item 1 20 00708 FUL - Final Report

	5.2 20/01005/TRE - 7 Enfield Gardens Netherton Peterborough PE3 9RP.
	Item 2. Final Committee Report TPO Draft 20-01005-TRE


